
 
 
 
 
 
 

E-mail: 
democraticservicestdc@teignbridge.gov.uk 

 
12 February 2024 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
A meeting of the Planning Committee will held on Tuesday, 20th February, 2024 in 
the Council Chamber, Forde House, Brunel Road, Newton Abbot, TQ12 4XX at 10.00 
am 
 
 

PHIL SHEARS 
Managing Director 

 
Membership: 
 

Councillors Atkins, Bradford (Vice-Chair), Bullivant, Goodman-
Bradbury, Hall, Hook, MacGregor, Nutley, Nuttall, Palethorpe, 
C Parker (Chair), Parrott, Purser, Sanders, J Taylor, Williams and 
Buscombe 
 

Substitutes:   Councillors Clarance, Gearon, P Parker, Ryan, Wrigley and D Cox 
 
Please Note:The public can view the live streaming of the meeting at Teignbridge 
District Council Webcasting (public-i.tv)  with the exception where there are confidential 
or exempt items, which may need to be considered in the absence of the press and 
public. 
 
Please Note: Filming is permitted during Committee meeting with the exception 
where there are confidential or exempt items, which may need to be considered in 
the absence of the press and public. This meeting will be livestreamed on Youtube 
By entering the meeting’s venue you are consenting to being filmed.  
 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

1

https://teignbridge.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://teignbridge.public-i.tv/core/portal/home
https://teignbridge.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

Public Access Statement 
Information for the Public  
 
There is an opportunity for members of the public to speak on planning applications at 
this meeting.  Full details are available online at 
www.teignbridge.gov.uk/planningcommittee. 
 
Please email democraticservicestdc@teignbridge.gov.uk or phone 01626 215112 to 
request to speak by 12 Noon two clear working days before the meeting. 
 
This agenda is available online at www.teignbridge.gov.uk/agendas five clear working 
days prior to the meeting.  If you would like to receive an e-mail which contains a link to 
the website for all forthcoming meetings, please e-mail 
democraticservicestdc@teignbridge.gov.uk   
 
General information about Planning Committee, delegated decisions, dates of future 
committees, public participation in committees as well as links to agendas and minutes 
are available at www.teignbridge.gov.uk/planningcommittee   
 
The Local Plan 2014-2033 is available at  
https://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/media/1669/local-plan-2013-33.pdf 
 
 
 
 
A G E N D A  
 
PART I 
(Open to the Public) 
 
  
1. Apologies for absence.  
 
2. Minutes (Pages 5 - 8) 
 To confirm the minutes of the last meeting. 

  
3. Declarations of Interest.  
 If Councillors have any questions relating to predetermination or interests in items 

on this Agenda, please contact the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
  

4. Public Participation  
 The Chairman to advise the Committee on any requests received from members of 

the public to address the Committee. 
  

5. Chairs' Announcements  
 
6. Planning applications for consideration - to consider applications for planning 

permission as set out below.  
 

2

http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/planningcommittee
mailto:democraticservicestdc@teignbridge.gov.uk
http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/agendas
mailto:comsec@teignbridge.gov.uk
http://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/planningcommittee
https://www.teignbridge.gov.uk/media/1669/local-plan-2013-33.pdf


 

a) 23/00936/MAJ Matford Home Farm - Substation (Pages 9 - 32) 
 
7. Appeal Decisions - to note appeal decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate. 

(Pages 33 - 34) 
 
8. S73 Major Decisions Summary (Pages 35 - 36) 

For Information - Upcoming Site Visit Dates 
14 March, 11 April, 9 May 
 
 

3



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
23 JANUARY 2024 
 
Present: 
 
Councillors Bradford (Vice-Chair), Bullivant, Hall, Hook, Nutley, Palethorpe, C Parker 
(Chair), Parrott, J Taylor, Clarance (Substitute) and Buscombe 
 

 
Members in Attendance: 
Councillors   
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Atkins, Goodman-Bradbury, MacGregor, Nuttall, Purser, Sanders and 
Williams 
 
Officers in Attendance: 
Trish Corns, Democratic Services Officer 
Sim Manley, Interim Head of Development Management 
Christopher Morgan, Trainee Democratic Services Officer 
Niki  Warner, Planning Officer 
John Douglas, Principal Planning Officer 
 

 
 
  

77.   MINUTES  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Parker and seconded by Councillor Nutley that the 
minutes of the previous meeting be agreed as a correct record and signed by the 
chair. 
 
A vote was taken by show of hands. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the minutes of the previous meeting be agreed as a correct record and 
signed by the chair. 
  

78.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 
Cllr Nutley declared an interest in application 22/02342/FUL due to his long-term 
acquaintance with the applicant. He did not speak or vote on this application and 
left the room during it.   
  

a)   22/02060/VAR - Old Exeter Street, Chudleigh  
 
 The Planning Officer presented the application to the Committee. 

Public Document Pack

15

Agenda Item 2



 
Planning Committee (23.1.2024) 

 

 
It was proposed by Councillor Nutley and seconded by Councillor Palethorpe 
that permission be granted as set out in the report. 
 
A vote was taken – the result was unanimously in favour. 
 
Resolved 
 
That permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 

1. Completion of a S106 agreement drafted with the objective of: ensuring 
that once this planning permission is granted, the building shall be used 
only as ancillary floorspace to the new dwelling (as sought through this 
permission) and no longer to 49 Old Exeter St as previously permitted, 
and 

2. Those conditions attached to 19/00994/FUL that continue to apply, and 
3. A revised condition replacing condition 3 of original permission 

19/00994/FUL worded as follows: The application building shall not be 
occupied at any time other than for purposes ancillary to the residential 
use of the dwelling granted planning permission by planning permissions 
20/02181/FUL or 22/02145/VAR (or any Non-Material Amendment made 
to either permission using Section 96A of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990), and shall not be used, let, leased or otherwise disposed of as 
a separate unit of accommodation. REASON: In order to restrict the use 
of the building such that it is not used as a self-contained dwelling without 
permission.  

b)   22/02342/FUL - 128 Ashburton Rd - Newton Abbot  
 
 The Principal Planning Officer presented the application to the committee. 
 
In response to concerns about the pavement leading to the site and its width, 
the PPO clarified that the pavement leading to the site led to the car park 
entrance and it measured 2.5 meters across.  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Bullivant and seconded by Councillor Palethorpe 
that permission be granted as set out in the report and update sheet with one 
extra condition regarding the pavement.  
 
A vote was taken – the result was unanimously in favour. 
 
Resolved 
 
That permission be granted subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. 3-year time limit condition 
2. Compliance with the approved plans/documents  

Pre-commencement: 
3. Prior to commencement of development details of fuel tanks and 

decommissioning methodology to remediate the land be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. (Agreed 12 

26



 
Planning Committee (23.1.2024) 

 

December 2023) 
4. Prior to the commencement of development, a Construction 

Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) will have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. (Agreed 12 
December 2023) 

5. The development shall proceed in accordance with the submitted Surface 
Water Drainage Assessment produced by Dennis Gedge Consulting 
Engineer, dated October 2023.  
During Construction 

6. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to 
be present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise 
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out 
until the developer has submitted, and obtained written approval from the 
Local Planning Authority for an investigation and risk assessment and, 
where necessary, a remediation strategy and verification plan detailing 
how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. 
Before works above DPM: 

7. No development shall take place above damp proof course level until 
samples of the materials to be used in all external surfaces of the building 
have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

8. No development shall take place above damp proof course level until 
such time as a detailed external lighting scheme for the development 
(including lighting to the store and within the car park and servicing 
areas), together with a timetable for its provision, has first been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Prior to first use: 

9. Any plant (including ventilation, refrigeration and air conditioning units) or 
ducting system permission shall be so installed prior to the first use of the 
premises and be so retained and operated that the noise generated at the 
boundary of the nearest neighbouring property shall not exceed 5db 
below the background noise level at the time of operation. Details of the 
scheme to demonstrate the above shall accord with the noise survey 
method British Standard: BS 4142:2014 and shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of development. (Agreed 12 December 2023) 

10. Deliveries shall take place only between the hours of 8.00 am and 7.00 
pm, other than those solely delivering newspapers 

11. The convenience store, hereby permitted, shall not be brought into use 
until such time as a delivery management plan (which shall include, but 
not be limited to, details of the means of ensuring vehicle engines are not 
left running at the time of deliveries and that vehicle reversing alarms are 
turned off). 

12. The uses at the site shall only be open between the hours of: a) 
Convenience store: 7.00 am and 11.00pm on any given day. b) Car 
valeting: Monday to Friday: 9am and 5pm, Saturday 9am and 4pm, and 
Sunday and bank holidays 9am and 4pm. c) Car servicing garage: 
Monday to Friday 8am and 5pm, Saturday 8am and 4pm and not at all on 
Sundays and Bank Holidays. 

13. The site access and parking arrangements shall be constructed, laid out 

37



 
Planning Committee (23.1.2024) 

 

and maintained thereafter in accordance with the details on drawing 
number 19837/203H., including the provision of a one-way system for 
which appropriate signage shall be provided. 

14. The car parking at lower ground floor level (shown on drawing number 
19837/203H) shall be constructed and made available prior to first use of 
the new building, and thereafter shall be used only for the purposes 
specified on drawing number 19837/203H. 

15. Prior to first use of the new building hereby approved the cycle stands 
shall be provided and available use and shall be retained thereafter. 

16. The retail sales area of the mixed-use (Sui Generis) of the application site 
hereby approved shall be limited to the floor space shown on drawing 
number 19837/202c (204.2 sq m).  

79.   APPEAL DECISIONS - TO NOTE APPEAL DECISIONS MADE BY THE 
PLANNING INSPECTORATE.  
 
The Committee noted the appeals decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate.  
  

80.   S73 MAJOR DECISIONS SUMMARY  
 
The Committee noted the Major Decisions Summary sheet.  
 
 
 
The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 10.25 am.  
 
 

 
Chair 
Cllr Colin Parker 

 

 
 

48



9

Agenda Item 6a



 

 

23/00936/MAJ  

 
1. REASON FOR REPORT 

• It is considered that the application merits oversight by the Planning Committee taking 
into account the importance of the infrastructure for housing delivery in the South 
West Exeter allocation and HIF funding.  In addition, Exminster Parish Council has 
requested the application be referred to the Planning Committee. 
 

• A Committee members’ site inspection is scheduled to take place on 15 February 
2024. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

PERMISSION BE REFUSED for the following reason: 

1. The application site currently consists of a mix of uses and buildings and has an 
industrial/agricultural appearance within a rural location currently undergoing 
significant planned change as part of the South West of Exeter Urban Extension.  
The application site is identified within the South West Exeter Development 
Framework (2014) as Development Plan Area E1 for Mixed Use development and 
Community Facilities and has outline planning permission granted for such a 
development.  Whilst the need for electricity infrastructure to serve the new 
dwellings at South West Exeter is acknowledged it is considered that the 
proposed development on the application site would result in a large, overbearing 
and alien structure, which by its nature is uninviting and hostile, within the 
landscape immediately adjacent to both existing and proposed residential 
properties.  Whilst some attempt has been made to mitigate the impact, the depth 
of the landscape buffer proposed is not considered sufficient to screen a 
development of the size and nature proposed in such close proximity to the 
existing dwellings.  The proposed development would not be consistent with the 
comprehensive approach to development as set out in policy SWE1 and the South 
West Exeter Development Framework and would result in significant harm to the 
character and appearance of the area and the amenity of both existing and future 
residents.  The proposed development is therefore contrary to policies S1, S2 and 
SWE1 of the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033 and the NPPF.  

3. DESCRIPTION 

3.1. Site Description 

3.2. The application site falls within the land allocated within the Teignbridge Local Plan 
2013 – 2033 for mixed use development under allocation SWE1 and extensive 
mixed use development is currently underway in the area as well as the delivery of 
open space.  Following the already approved development within the area, the 
character would be predominately residential with other uses designed to sit within 
a residential setting. 

3.3. The application site currently includes a mix of industrial and agricultural buildings 
which are currently in a number of uses including a country store as well as a 
dwelling (Matford Home Farmhouse).  A power line crosses the site.  The site has 
outline planning permission for a mixed use development.  Immediately adjacent to 
the site is Matford Mews and Devon Hotel.  The A379 is located to the north and the 
site is currently accessed from an older lane which sits at a lower level than the 

10



 

 

A379; the parking for Devon Hotel is located off this lane.  The site slopes upwards 
away from the lane towards existing agricultural land to the south.   

3.4. There are a number of temporary structures and uses at Matford Home Farm which 
would potentially fall within the definition of development requiring planning 
permission, however, there is planning permission for the larger buildings on the 
site.  The planning permission for caravan storage has now expired; however, a 
fresh planning application has been submitted (23/02150/FUL).  The suitability of 
any enforcement action would fall outside of the current proposals; however, the 
current use of the site may therefore be at a higher level of intensity than has 
planning permission. 

3.5. Relevant Planning History 

3.6. 15/00921/MAJ: Outline planning application for demolition of existing buildings and 
for residential and commercial development (C3, E uses) (approval sought for 
access); outline permission granted. 

3.7. Outline planning permission was granted in 2020 subject to reserved matters 
approval being granted and a subsequent application for reserved matters approval 
has been submitted under reference 23/01821/MAJ and is currently under 
consideration.  The outline planning permission granted consent for between 175 
and 250 dwellings and 280-1280m2 of Class E floorspace.  The outline planning 
permission secured a number of obligations including the provision of at least 22% 
affordable dwellings, 5% self/custom build plots, and a financial contribution towards 
gypsy and traveller pitches.   

3.8. 15/02178/MAJ: Change of use of land to Suitable Alternative Natural Green Space 
(SANGS) (Use Class D2) required for the residential development on adjoining land; 
permission granted. 

3.9. 21/02604/MAJ: Outline planning application for demolition of existing buildings and 
for residential and commercial development (C3, E uses) (approval sought for 
access).  Duplicate outline planning permission following outline planning 
permission 15/00921/MAJ; pending consideration. 

3.10. 23/01821/MAJ: Reserved matters application for the approval of 245 dwellings and 
1202sqm of commercial/employment space with associated roads, footways, 
parking, drainage, open space and landscaping (approval sought for appearance, 
landscaping, layout and scale) pursuant to outline planning permission 
15/00921/MAJ (Outline planning application for demolition of existing buildings and 
for residential and commercial development (C3, E uses) (approval sought for 
access)).  Pending Consideration. 

3.11. 23/02150/FUL: Change of use of existing yard and building for the refurbishment, 
storage and sale of static homes for a further 2 years; pending consideration. 

3.12. DCC/4329/2022: Construction of a 132Kv-33Kv -11Kv Supply Point Electricity 
Substation, Operational Electricity Plant, Substation Access Road and Surface 
Water Drainage Outfall 

3.13. This application was submitted to Devon County Council in November 2022.  TDC 
were consulted on the application and whilst in support of the principle of developing 
and upgrading the local electricity supply to secure additional capacity for new 

11



 

 

development, TDC raised strong concerns about the proposed location of the 
substation.  The application remains undetermined and predates the current 
application for the same development currently before TDC. 

3.14. DCC/4330/2022: Construction of a spine road, vehicular turning head, drainage 
attenuation basin, surface water drainage outfall to the Matford Brook, foul drainage 
sewer, utility diversions and landscaping 

3.15. DCC has secured planning consent for the MHF spine road under planning ref: 
DCC/4330/2022. 

3.16. Proposed Development 

3.17. To help deliver this infrastructure early and unlock development sites, DCC has 
secured £55.1 million of funding from the Government’s Housing Infrastructure Fund 
(HIF).  The need for a substation has been identified by Western Power Distribution 
(WPD) for the network to accommodate future development and that the existing 
equipment is reaching the limits of its capacity.  Also, the demand for electricity is 
expected to increase in the future with the installation of heat pumps and electric 
vehicle charging points.  A new Bulk Supply Point would provide sufficient capacity 
to meet such future demands. 

3.18. The basic requirements of the site are: 

• A minimum site of 100 x 70 metres. 

• Very close proximity to the 132kV network. 

• Close proximity to the South West Exeter Development and areas of potential 
future development. 

• A level site or should be able to be levelled. 

• Good access for large equipment and construction vehicles and access for 
maintenance. 

3.19. The proposed development involves the construction of a 132kV Bulk Supply Point 
Electricity Substation at Matford Home Farm.  The proposed development is for the 
transmission / supply of electricity.  It comprises a new substation area which will 
contain operational electricity plant with a new access road linking to the A379. 

3.20. Existing buildings at Matford Home Farm including Matford Home Farmhouse, 
Parr’s Country Store, Perimeters Fencing and Static Homes UK, as well as other 
buildings and structures, are shown to be demolished.  The existing power line is 
shown as retained although the option to place this underground may come forward 
at a later date but would not be secured by the current application. 

3.21. Principle of Development 

3.22. TLP policy SWE1 sets out the policy framework for the delivery of the South West 
Exeter Urban Extension and sets out that the South West of Exeter will develop as 
a sustainable urban extension, resilient to climate change where new and existing 
residents will be able to access a range of community facilities, jobs, recreation 
areas and public transport improvements.  It will represent a new part of the City, 
south of the River Exe which will reinforce the importance of the southern approach.  
The aim is to establish a new area within the natural setting of Exeter, sitting below 
the ridgeline and benefiting from the backcloth of the hills that enclose the city.  TLP 
policy SWE1 states that proposals will not be permitted where they would prevent a 

12



 

 

comprehensive approach to the development and infrastructure of the whole site.  
The South West Exeter Development Framework (2014) identifies the site as 
Development Plan Area E1 for Mixed Use development and Community Facilities. 

3.23. Devon County Council undertook a public consultation in 2021 regarding the 
location of a new electricity substation.  The public consultation considered three 
sites including Site 1 at Marsh Barton, Site 2 at Matford Home Farm (the application 
site) and Site 3 at Old Matford Lane.  The consultation did not include an option to 
locate the substation at Peamore.  The outcome of the public consultation was that 
there was a strong preference for Site 1, whilst Site 2 (the application site) had the 
least public support.  However, the conclusion in terms of site 1 was that it can only 
be pursued in the event that it passes the flood risk sequential test.  It is noted that 
the response to the consultation from the land/property owners for Site 1 (Marsh 
Barton) stated that the land has been partially raised in readiness for development 
in order to address any flood risk and providing fill to raise the site levels by just 
under two metres is likely to be feasible without significant costs.  The November 
2021 Options Appraisal Report by DCC considered that Site 1 would require 
significant groundworks to raise the site above predicted flood levels and that this 
would need to be above the level that the site has already been raised to.  
Additionally, DCC considered that this is likely to result in a more complex 
construction process involving the need for piling as the development would be 
located on made ground.  Site 3 at Old Matford Lane was discounted due to major 
concerns in terms of construction access, the site falls within a County Wildlife Site 
and the distance from the planned development areas with the potential requirement 
to make additional connections through the SANGS land as well as concerns with 
interference with the adjacent telecommunications mast.   

3.24. When assessing the proposed Matford Home Farm site DCC’s Landscape Team 
commented on the 2021 public consultation that it is much better to use a brownfield 
site surrounded by future urban land uses than a greenfield site in the countryside; 
however, the substation is likely to result in adverse day and (if lighting is required) 
night-time visual impacts on the amenity enjoyed by existing and future residents 
adjacent to the site’s western, southern and eastern borders.  Scope to mitigate 
these effects will be key and could be highly problematic to get these to acceptable 
levels.  The mitigation measures themselves could require more land area and / or 
look incongruous themselves.  There is a substantial change in levels across the 
site from north to south – around 8m.  Should this site option be pursued it would 
be worth examining cross-sections through possible layouts to explore how 
recessing the site at a lower level may help mitigate adverse effects.  This combined 
with a visual screening bund may be the most appropriate way of mitigating 
environmental effects.  Of the three sites, Site 1 was considered more preferable 
and Site 3 should be discounted from a landscape impact. 

3.25. The November 2021 Options Appraisal Report by DCC found that without 
mitigation, locating the substation at Site 2 (the application site) would likely have 
an unacceptable visual impact on the existing and planned residential development 
to the west, south and east as well as the planned public open space to the south 
where the impact would be exacerbated by the higher elevation of the land to the 
south of the site.  The Report considered that there were sufficient opportunities to 
mitigate the impact at Site 2 including locating the substation to the north portion of 
the site and landscape planting.  In addition, the Report noted that relocating the 
existing power line that runs through the site so that it is underground would remove 
the existing impact of that power line.  It should be noted that the submitted proposal 

13



 

 

has not relocated the power line underground and that this forms a constraint on the 
location of the substation within Site 2 which has resulted in the substation being 
located closer to the existing dwellings at Matford Mews. 

3.26. The November 2021 Options Appraisal Report by DCC considered the Peamore 
site and agreed in principle that an electricity substation would be compatible with 
the other uses proposed at the allocated employment site and the TDC Local Plan 
Review 2020-2040 outlines this site and some of the wider area as having potential 
for residential development.  The Options Appraisal considered this site to be 
remote from the areas of substantial future development at SW Exeter and the 
distance of the site from the existing 132kV network.  Diverting the 132kV cable to 
the site would add significant additional cost and require connections back to 
development.  The Peamore site would meet the other site selection criteria but was 
rejected and not considered further due to the electricity connection issues both to 
and from the site.  An additional site was also considered at Markhams Farm; this 
site also met the site selection criteria apart from the proximity to the 132kV network. 

3.27. Three additional sites (A, B and C) at South West Exeter were also considered with 
Sites B and C rejected on the basis that they do not provide a suitable size which is 
either level or able to be levelled and do not have appropriate access.  Site A 
(Grassmead) was assessed further and the Options Appraisal found that whilst a 
substation may technically be able to fit within the site, there is less land available 
and therefore reduced ability to provide any necessary mitigation to limit the impact 
of the proposed development. 

3.28. The November 2021 Options Appraisal Report set out that discrete noise impact 
assessments have been undertaken for sites 1, 2 and 3.   Subject to necessary 
mitigation the assessment identified that all three sites would not have an 
unacceptable adverse impact on the noise environment during construction.  
Without mitigation noise levels during operations at Sites 1 and 2 would be likely to 
generate an adverse noise impact.  Advice from WPD has suggested that even with 
noise enclosures, transformers should be located at least 25 metres from properties. 

3.29. The proposed development would cover the front part of the development site for 
which outline planning permission has been granted for mixed use development.  In 
particular the development would overlap land shown for residential, commercial, 
open space and SuDS attenuation ponds within the submitted reserved matters 
application for the mixed use development.  A grant of planning permission for the 
substation on this land would prevent the mixed use development coming forward 
as currently permitted and would likely require a further planning permission to 
enable the development of the wider site and would likely result in a reduction in the 
number of dwellings and commercial space delivered.  The substation would also 
result in the loss of the existing businesses and dwelling on the site. 

3.30. It is acknowledged that extensive work has been undertaken in terms of site 
selection.  However, the benefits of delivering the electricity infrastructure to support 
development at South West Exeter should be weighed against the impact of the 
proposed development, including preventing a comprehensive approach to the 
development and infrastructure of the whole site as well as the impact of the 
proposed development on the area which includes the amenity of both existing and 
future residents.  

3.31. Character and Appearance of the Area and Residential Amenity 

14



 

 

3.32. The site is located within the Exe Estuary and Farmlands Landscape Character Area 
and the Lower rolling farmed and settled valley slopes Landscape Character Type 
(LCT 3B).  However, as it falls within the SWE1 South West of Exeter Urban 
Extension area, the character of the area is currently going through a period of 
significant change. 

3.33. TLP Policies S1 and S2 set out a number of criteria against which development 
proposals will be expected to perform well against including the impact on the 
residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings and maintenance or 
enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of affected 
landscapes, seascapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees 
and other environmental assets.  Also, that new development will be of high quality 
design, which will support the creation of attractive, vibrant places.  Developments 
should be integrated with and, where possible, enhance the character of the 
adjoining built and natural environment, particularly affected heritage assets and 
create inclusive layouts which promote health and well-being.  Developments 
should respect the distinctive character of the local landscape.  TLP policy SWE1 
states that proposals will not be permitted where they would prevent a 
comprehensive approach to the development and infrastructure of the whole site. 

3.34. The NPPF sets out that the creation of high quality, beautiful and sustainable 
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development process 
should achieve; good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates 
better places in which to live and work and helps to make development acceptable 
to communities (NPPF, paragraph 131).  NPPF paragraph 135 sets out that 
planning decisions should ensure that developments will function well and add to 
the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but over the lifetime of the 
development; are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and 
appropriate and effective landscaping; are sympathetic to local character and 
history, including the surrounding built environment and landscape settings; 
establish and maintain a strong sense of place; optimise the potential of the site to 
accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of development; and 
create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and 
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.   

3.35. As part of the submitted Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) the 
applicant has produced a zone of theoretical visibility which demonstrates that the 
substation would be potentially visible within a wide area including the adjacent 
existing, new built and committed housing developments.  The LVIA acknowledges 
that the site would likely be visible to a number of dwellings within the area including 
but not limited to Nos. 6-8 and 9-14 Matford Mews and that, with the removal of the 
existing buildings, views are unavoidable particularly from upper floor windows and 
that proposed bunding and vegetation will partially obscure views.  The LVIA found 
that the removal of the industrial buildings in such close proximity to Matford Mews 
will open up views into the site; however, the LVIA considered that these views are 
likely to be similar in nature to the existing industrial outlook and set against the 
backdrop of wider residential development and therefore the effect on the visual 
amenity of residents was considered to be neutral or negligible (adverse).  The LVIA 
considered that the proposed substation would have a similar visual impact to the 
existing farm/industrial buildings complex; however, this fails to take into account 
the nature and appearance of a substation of this scale compared to a collection of 
buildings containing retail provision where visitors to the site would be welcomed.  
The development is also considered by the LVIA to have a negligible (adverse) 

15



 

 

impact on Matford House following the construction of housing within the ground of 
Matford House and the Cavanna housing scheme, which greatly increases the 
sense of urbanisation to the view thereby reducing the impact of the proposed 
development.  This appears to place the visual impact of the proposed substation 
on a similar basis to residential development.  The submitted LVIA found that there 
would be minor (beneficial) impacts on a number of other nearby properties due to 
the removal of the large industrial/agricultural building associated with Static Homes 
UK.  

3.36. The application site currently consists of a mix of uses and buildings and has an 
industrial/agricultural building appearance.  It should be noted that the storage and 
sale of static homes is for a temporary period.  The delivery of the approved mixed 
use development on this site would result in a significant positive impact in terms of 
the character and appearance of the area including the removal of the existing 
buildings and power lines across the site.  The proposed development in contrast 
would result in a large, overbearing and alien structure in the landscape, which by 
its nature is uninviting and hostile, immediately adjacent to both existing and 
proposed residential properties.  Whilst some attempt has been made to mitigate 
the impact, the depth of the landscape buffer proposed is not considered sufficient 
to screen a development of the size proposed in such close proximity to the existing 
dwellings, particularly with the existing dwellings within Matford Mews.  Officers 
worked with the applicant in exploring options for the site to provide more substantial 
landscaped buffers with the existing dwellings and reducing the ground level so that 
the proposed substation would sit lower in the landscape.  However, it is understood 
that having explored these options they were not considered viable or would 
increase the impact on the new dwellings to the east.  The applicant also provided 
examples of other places where such structures were located in close proximity to 
dwellings; these examples confirmed the concerns of officers that the proposed 
structures would have a greater impact on the amenity of residential occupiers and 
the character and appearance of the area than the existing structures and would fall 
significantly short of what could be achieved on the site with the implementation of 
the outline planning permission. 

3.37. The proposed development is therefore considered contrary to TLP policies S1, S2 
and SWE1 and the NPPF. 

3.38. Noise Impact 

3.39. A Noise Impact Assessment has been submitted with the application.  The 
methodology set out in BS4142 compares a rating of the noise from the specific 
source being assessed with the background sound climate existing at relevant 
noise-sensitive receptors in the absence of the source operation.  The difference in 
levels established is taken as an indication of the magnitude of the noise impact, 
subject to contextual considerations.  Contextual factors that may be of importance 
include the magnitude of the difference between rating level and background sound; 
the character of the existing noise environment at receptors; history of noise issues 
(e.g. complaints) associated with the operator or the site of the specific source under 
assessment; the diurnal period during which impacts are identified, and the 
relevance to the type of receptor; and, the location at which actual impacts on the 
receptor could occur, i.e. indoor or outdoor.  BS8233 provides guidance on noise 
attenuation measures that are relevant when considering mitigation and noise 
transmission into sensitive areas of the building.  The guidance sets out internal 
ambient noise limits for steady, external sources without a specific character.  “Noise 

16



 

 

has a specific character if it contains features such as a distinguishable, discrete 
and continuous tone, is irregular enough to attract attention, or has strong low-
frequency content, in which case lower noise limits might be appropriate” (BS8233 
clause 7.7.1). 

3.40. In terms of the construction phase, the submitted Noise Impact Assessment found 
that for the worst-case activity of percussive piling, receptors within 80m are likely 
to experience annoyance and receptors within 15m are likely to experience 
cosmetic damage.   

3.41. In terms of the operational phase, the submitted assessment showed that during 
the daytime periods for both the ONAN (Oil Natural Air Natural) and ONAF (Oil 
Natural Air Forced)/OFAF (Oil Forced Air Forced) cooling scenarios the majority of 
receptors are likely to experience no impact, depending on the context.  During 
night-time periods the assessment shows that for the ONAN scenario the majority 
of receptors are likely to experience no adverse impact, depending on context.  
Receptors R2 (9 Matford Mews), R3, R4 and R5 (Cavanna Homes Development) 
are likely to experience an adverse impact, with no mitigation, depending on context.  
During the night-time periods the assessment shows that for the ONAF/OFAF 
scenario the majority of receptors are likely to experience an adverse impact, with 
no mitigation, depending on the context; receptors R3 and R4 area likely to 
experience a difference of + 10dB, which is a significant adverse impact, with no 
mitigation, depending on context. 

3.42. Based on the results of the Noise Impact Assessment, mitigation measures would 
be required such as an acoustic enclosure at each of the proposed transformers.  
With the use of a suitably specified acoustic enclosure it is likely that noise levels 
from the transformers can be mitigated.  A condition would be required for a detailed 
specification of the noise enclosure once the frequency spectrum of the 
transformers is known.  The Environmental Health Team has not raised an objection 
subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions.  It is expected that any required 
acoustic enclosures would be contained within the proposed enclosure and 
therefore the proposed site screening would also provide screening for any acoustic 
measures.  Officer concerns regarding the suitability of the proposed screening 
measures and the lack of sufficient landscaping buffer have already been addressed 
above.  

3.43. Historic Environment 

3.44. To the east of the application site and to the north of the A370 is the grade II listed 
Cotfield and Matfield.  This is a large early 19th century house, divided into two 
properties.  Numerous Scheduled Monuments are located within the surrounding 
landscape including an Earthwork enclosure to the south of the application site and 
extensive archaeological investigations have taken place across the local area as 
part of the South West Exeter allocation.  Non-designated heritage assets within the 
vicinity of the site would include The Devon Hotel and Matford Mews, on the western 
boundary of the application site, and also Matford House and Trood House.  There 
is the potential therefore for the proposed development to impact built and buried 
heritage assets. 

3.45. An Historic Environment Desk-Based Assessment and Written Scheme of 
Investigation (WSI) for an archaeological watching brief has been submitted with 
the application. 

17



 

 

3.46. What would have been a rural setting of Cotfield and Matfield grade II listed house 
has been encroached upon by more modern development at Matford and more 
recently by the housing developments to the south.  Also, extensive modern works 
to the A379, which has been widened to a dual carriageway, will have also 
undermined the rural setting of this designated heritage asset.  The existing 
electricity pylons through the area would also impact the setting of this heritage 
asset and the proposed development would clearly further impact on this setting.  
The proposed development would therefore result in further harm to the setting of 
Cotfield and Matfield. 

3.47. The Devon Hotel and Matford Mews has been assessed within the submitted 
Historic Environment Assessment as a non-designated, surviving but altered 
complex of house, mews and stables and that the group of buildings is a heritage 
asset of low significance with the setting encroached upon by developments to the 
north, east and south including the existing structures on the application site.  The 
Assessment acknowledges that the group of assets has a historic relationship to 
other assets historically connected to the Matford Estate, including Trood House, 
the road network and to the grade II listed Cotfield and Matfield.  Given the close 
proximity of the substation to Matford Mews the proposed development would 
clearly result in harm to this non-designated heritage asset.   

3.48. In terms of buried heritage assets, archaeological survival is anticipated to range 
from moderate to low with the greatest potential for late prehistoric/Roman remains 
within the south section of the site.  Subject to appropriate conditions for the 
development to be carried out in accordance with the submitted WSI, the proposal 
is considered acceptable with regards to the potential for buried archaeology onsite. 

3.49. The Scheduled Monument – Earthwork enclosure 220yds (200m) NE of Church 
Path Hill Plantation – is located to the south of the application site and is thought to 
date from late prehistoric or Romano-British periods.  The submitted Historic 
Environment Assessment sets out that the proposed development would introduce 
a new built form in the setting of the asset, notably within views towards the north 
and the Exe river valley, and that whilst these views have already been 
compromised by modern developments, the substation, associated infrastructure 
and new compound with palisade fencing does introduce a setting impact.  The 
Assessment found there to be strong intervisibility between the heritage asset and 
the proposed development and that the works would have a visible impact upon the 
asset’s setting.  The Assessment concluded that taken overall, the proposed 
development would result in less than substantial harm to the heritage significance 
of the asset; however, the Assessment also concluded that the change to the setting 
would not be significant. 

3.50. The proposed development, from the applicant’s own Historic Environment 
Assessment, would result in less than substantial harm to the setting of Cotfield and 
Matfield grade II listed house and to the Scheduled Monument Earthwork enclosure 
as well as less than substantial harm to The Devon Hotel and Matford Mews, Trood 
House and Matford House.  The proposed development would therefore result in 
less than substantial harm to both designated and non-designated heritage assets. 

3.51. The NPPF sets out that when considering the impacts of the proposed development, 
great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation and that the more important 
the asset the greater the weight should be (NPPF, paragraph 205).  Any harm to, or 
loss of, the significance of a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or 

18



 

 

destruction, or from development within its setting), should require clear and 
convincing justification (NPPF, paragraph 206).  Where a development proposal will 
lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, 
this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, 
where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use (NPPF, paragraph 208).  The 
effect of an application on the significance of a non-designated heritage asset 
should be taken into account in determining the application and in weighing 
applications that directly or indirectly affect non-designated heritage assets, a 
balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss 
and the significance of the heritage asset (NPPF, paragraph 209).  TLP policy EN5 
(Heritage Assets) states that to protect and enhance the area’s heritage, 
consideration of development proposals will take account of the significance, 
character, setting and local distinctiveness of any affected heritage asset and that 
development should respect and draw inspiration from the local historic environment 
responding positively to the character and distinctiveness of the area, important 
historic features, their settings and street patterns and that where appropriate 
development should include proposals for enhancement of the historic environment. 

3.52. The existing structures at Matford Home Farm and modern developments within the 
area have clearly encroached into the rural setting of the area’s designated and non-
designated heritage assets.  As designated heritage assets the grade II listed 
building, Cotfield and Matfield, and the Scheduled Monument Earthwork enclosure 
have been assessed as having high and very high significance respectively within 
the submitted Historic Environment Assessment whilst the non-designated heritage 
assets are considered to have low asset significance.  The negative impacts on the 
setting of these designated and non-designated heritage assets would be contrary 
to TLP policies EN5.  The proposed development is considered to result in less than 
substantial harm to designated and non-designated heritage assets and therefore 
the scheme should be weighed against the public benefits as set out in paragraphs 
208 and 209 and the NPPF.  In this instance the public benefits of the proposed 
substation, in supporting the delivery of the sustainable mixed use urban extension 
at the South West of Exeter, are considered to outweigh the harm to the setting of 
the heritage assets. 

3.53. Biodiversity, Protected Habitats and Species 

3.54. The application site is located within 750m of the Exe Estuary Special Protection 
Area (SPA), Ramsar Site and Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), which are 
statutory protected.  Direct impacts from the scheme are not anticipated however 
the Exe Estuary is hydrologically linked to the application site.   

3.55. The Biodiversity Officer has screened the proposals under the Habitat Regulations 
and found No Likely Significant Effect on the Exe Estuary and a full Appropriate 
Assessment is therefore not required. 

3.56. There are 30 non-statutory sites within 2km of the application site.  This includes 
the Matford Marshes County Wildlife Site (CWS) and Exeter Canal CWS, which are 
hydrologically connected to the application site and are considered sensitive 
receptors with indirect effects from both construction and operation phases of the 
proposed development.   

3.57. The submitted Ecological Impact Assessment sets out that indirect effects could be 
mitigated by the use of standard best-practice techniques and methods detailed 

19



 

 

within a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP).  This should be 
secured by condition. 

3.58. The application site itself consists mainly of hardstanding and buildings with some 
patches of amenity grassland, tall ruderal, dense scrub, arable land and lines of 
trees.  In addition, two small areas of habitats of principal importance exist within 
the scheme boundary: broadleaved woodland and running water/river.  Collectively 
these habitats within the site support a wide range of important species including: 
roosting, foraging and commuting bats; foraging and commuting badger; foraging 
and commuting otters and water vole (along Matford Brook); dormice; breeding 
birds (including barn owl and cirl bunting); reptiles, fish and aquatic invertebrates; 
and other Species of Principal Importance (hedgehog, brown hare and toad). 

3.59. The various ecology, landscaping and lighting documents submitted with the 
application recommend a suite of avoidance, mitigation, compensation and 
enhancement (net gain) measures including new planting, retention of existing trees 
and scrub, construction management measures, lighting controls and the provision 
of a new bat house.  Taken together these are considered acceptable in terms of 
protected species and biodiversity enhancement and should be secured by 
condition.  The Biodiversity Officer has requested that Lesser Periwinkle (Vinca 
minor) is removed from the proposed Native Scrub Mix A, as it is an invasive non-
native species; species mix could be controlled by condition on a grant of consent. 

3.60. Of Natural England’s ‘Three Tests’ it is considered that Test 3 (Favourable 
Conservation Status) is met.  The Biodiversity Officer also considers that Natural 
England is likely to issue a European Protected Species licence where needed. 

3.61. Trees 

3.62. An Arboricultural Impact Assessment has been submitted with the application and 
identified a total of 22 arboricultural features consisting of 5 individual trees, 16 tree 
groups and 1 hedge.  3 were assessed to be of moderate quality, 17 features of low 
quality and 2 features of very low quality.  The submitted Assessment is 
accompanied by a proposed Tree Removal and Protection Plan and an Outline 
Arboricultural Method Statement. 

3.63. Subject to proposed protection measures and planting scheme the proposal is 
considered acceptable with regards to the impact on trees. 

3.64. Flood Risk and Surface Water Drainage 

3.65. The Sequential Test the applicant included within the Options Appraisal Report 
November 2021 concluded that Site 1 (Matford Green Business Park) would fail the 
sequential test as Site 2 (the application site) is a suitable alternative site that is at 
a lower risk of flooding.  However, the submitted scheme for Site 2 would result in 
significant adverse impacts on the character and appearance of the area and 
residential amenity and therefore the site is not considered to be a reasonably 
available site in terms of the sequential test for Site 1.  As the application site is 
located in flood risk zone 1 a Sequential Test is not required for the current 
application. 

3.66. The applicant has proposed to manage surface water from the substation 
development within an underground attenuation tank and oil interceptor.  The outfall 
from the site appears to be along the highway and into the Matford Brook within land 

20



 

 

owned by Devon County Council.  Subject to the Lead Local Flood Authority’s 
requested pre-commencement condition regarding detailed drainage design based 
upon the Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy the proposal is considered 
acceptable with regards to flood risk and surface water drainage management. 

3.67. Concerns of existing off-site flooding have been raised by objectors, the proposed 
surface water drainage measures, including attenuation provision, would likely 
result in an improvement of surface water management on the site and therefore 
reduce the risk of offsite flooding. 

3.68. Sustainable Development / Carbon Reduction 

3.69. A Sustainable Design – Carbon Assessment report has been submitted with the 
application along with a Carbon Management Plan.  This Report presents an 
assessment of the Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions arising from the construction 
and operation of the proposed development and recommends potential carbon 
reduction measures that could be taken.  As the expected timescales for 
decommissioning are so far into the future the Report does not consider these 
emissions as there is insufficient certainty about the likelihood, type or scale of 
emission activity. 

3.70. Given the nature of the proposed development it would support the installation of 
low carbon infrastructure, including such items as heat pumps and EV charging 
points at new homes, within the area. 

3.71. A waste audit statement has also been submitted; whilst largely acceptable to DCC 
as the relevant authority for Waste Planning, the waste audit statement should be 
updated to include principles to ensure that the disposal location is in close proximity 
to the development site to minimise the distance for waste to travel.  It is considered 
that this issue could be addressed by use of a suitable worded condition for a 
revised waste audit statement. 

3.72. Given the nature of the proposed development and subject to conditions to secure 
appropriate construction and operational phase measures and a revised waste audit 
statement, the proposal is considered acceptable with regards to carbon reduction 
and waste reduction measures. 

3.73. Highways 

3.74. The operational phase of the proposed development would result in less traffic to 
the site than the existing use.  Devon County Council has already secured planning 
permission for the proposed spine road under planning ref: DCC/4330/2022, which 
includes the proposed access to the substation from the A379.  Subject to a 
condition to secure the Construction Environmental Management Plan to manage 
construction traffic, the proposal is not considered to give raise to significant impacts 
in terms of traffic generation or highway safety.   

3.75. Other Matters  

3.76. Additional matters have been raised by objectors including impact on health and 
EMF.  This matter is not currently a material planning consideration, the Council’s 
Environmental Health team has not raised concerns on the matter of health impacts 
and there would be no evidence to support a refusal on this basis.  The impact on 
house prices would also not be a material planning consideration. 

21



 

 

3.77. It is noted that the landowner is not the applicant for this proposal and has objected 
to the application, and therefore it is unclear whether the site would need to be 
secured under a compulsory purchase order to deliver the proposed infrastructure. 

3.78. Conclusion 

3.79. The application site currently consists of a mix of uses and buildings and has an 
industrial/agricultural appearance within a rural location currently undergoing 
significant planned change as part of the South West of Exeter Urban Extension.  
The application site is identified within the South West Exeter Development 
Framework (2014) as Development Plan Area E1 for Mixed Use development and 
Community Facilities and has outline planning permission granted for such a 
development.  Whilst the need for electricity infrastructure to serve the new 
dwellings at South West Exeter is acknowledged it is considered that the proposed 
development on the application site would result in a large alien structure, which by 
its nature is uninviting and hostile, within the landscape immediately adjacent to both 
existing and proposed residential properties to the detriment of the character and 
appearance of the area including the setting of both designated and non-designated 
heritage assets.  Whilst some attempt has been made to mitigate the impact, the 
depth of the landscape buffer proposed is not considered sufficient to screen a 
development of the size proposed in such close proximity to the existing dwellings.  
The proposed development would not be consistent with the comprehensive 
approach to development as set out in policy SWE1 and the South West Exeter 
Development Framework and would result in a significant harm to the character and 
appearance of the area and the amenity of both existing and future residents.  It is 
considered that other opportunities should be further explored, including siting the 
proposed facility at Peamore as part of a comprehensive proposal with appropriate 
screening measures. 

3.80. In terms of the planning balance, whilst the need for the provision the proposed 
development is acknowledged the nature, scale and design of the proposed 
development would result in a significant impact on the character and appearance 
of the area and would have a significant detrimental impact on the amenity of 
existing and future residential occupiers and is therefore considered contrary to TLP 
policies S1, S2 and SWE1 and the NPPF. 

4. POLICY DOCUMENTS 

Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033 (TLP) 
S1A Presumption in favour of Sustainable Development 
S1 Sustainable Development Criteria 
S2 Quality Development 
S3 Land for Business, General Industrial and Storage and Distribution 
S4 Land for New Homes 
S5 Infrastructure 
S6 Resilience 
S7 Carbon Emission Targets 
S9 Sustainable Transport 
S10 Transport Networks 
S11 Pollution 
S21A Settlement Limits 
WE11 Green Infrastructure 
EN2A Landscape Protection and Enhancement 

22



 

 

EN3 Carbon Reduction Plans 
EN4 Flood Risk 
EN5 Heritage Assets 
EN6 Air Quality 
EN7 Contaminated Land 
EN8 Biodiversity Protection and Enhancement 
EN9 Important Habitats and Features 
EN10 European Wildlife Sites 
EN11 Legally Protected and Priority Species 
EN12 Woodlands, Trees and Hedgerows 
SWE1 South West of Exeter Urban Extension 
SWE3 Ridge Top Park 
 
South West Exeter Development Framework (July 2014) 
 
Exminster Neighbourhood Development Plan 2013-2033 
EXM1 Community Sports & Leisure Facility 
EXM3 Quality of Design 
EXM4 Use of Community Infrastructure Levies 
 
Devon Waste Plan 2011-2031 
W4 Waste Prevention 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2023) 
 
National Planning Policy Guidance (PPG) 
 
Proposed Submission Local Plan 2020-2040 
 
This is the Regulation 19 version of the Emerging Local Plan (i.e. the final draft). It is 
the version of the Plan which will be submitted to the Planning Inspectorate for public 
examination. 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework sets out that decision-takers may give 
weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to their stage of preparation, 
the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies, and their 
degree of consistency with policies in the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
The Proposed Submission Local Plan continues to propose development at South 
West / West Exeter with further residential-led and mixed use development to the 
west of the A30 at Markham Lane and Peamore and the creation of an additional 
SANGS area identified as West Exe Countryside Park.  Whilst limited weight can be 
given to the emerging policies at this stage, it is clear that the current application site 
continues to fall within the planned allocations within this area. 
 

5. CONSULTEES 

5.1. National Highways 

5.2. National Highways’ formal recommendation is that conditions should be attached to 
any planning permission that may be granted.   

23



 

 

5.3. National Highways has no objection in principle subject to, in the interest of the safe 
and efficient operation of the strategic road network, a full Construction Traffic 
Management Plan being submitted and approved prior to the commencement of the 
development and for the measures contained to be implemented in full and remain 
in place for the duration of the construction phase. 

5.4. The submitted Outline Construction Management Plan sets out that a Traffic 
Management Plan will be produced during the construction period.  To ensure the 
construction phase will not result in an adverse impact on the safe operation of the 
strategic road network National Highways will require the submission of a full 
Construction Management Plan for National Highways review prior to the 
commencement of development.  This must include as a minimum details of 
construction programme (daily working hours, traffic movements etc); construction 
traffic types, volumes and routing; confirmation of any abnormal loads; full details of 
any proposed road closures and temporary traffic control of the site; and a full 
signage strategy for the works. 

5.5. Once constructed the proposed substation would be unstaffed and accessed only 
by authorised maintenance personnel.  The site is forecast to attract one 
maintenance vehicle per month for the lifetime of the substation. National Highways 
is satisfied that the operation of the development will not result in an adverse impact 
on safe operation of the strategic road network. 

5.6. Standing Advice to the LPA: For the UK to achieve net zero carbon status by 2050, 
action is needed to support a modal shift away from car travel.  The NPPF supports 
this position, with paragraphs 73 and 105 [now paragraphs 74 and 109 of the NPPF 
2023] prescribing that significant development should offer a genuine choice of 
transport modes, while paragraphs 104 and 110 [now paragraphs 108 and 114] 
advise that appropriate opportunities to promote walking, cycling and public 
transport should be taken up.  Moreover, the build clever and build efficiently criteria 
to promote the use of low carbon materials and products, innovative design 
solutions and construction methods to minimise resource consumption. 

5.7. DCC Highways  

5.8. No objection. 

5.9. A new 4.5m wide bituminous surfaced access road into the Site is proposed to 
provide a safe and suitable access for periodic maintenance activities and major 
plant / equipment delivery / replacement.  The tie-in of the substation access road 
is at the existing S379 access along the site’s northern boundary.  Works are 
proposed to widen the existing access to provide sufficient space to accommodate 
an abnormal load vehicle, which would be required for delivery / replacement of the 
substation transformer equipment.  The access widening work would include the 
removal of two existing trees.  The proposed substation access road ties-in at the 
back edge of the shared use cycleway / footway running along the A379, where 
there is an existing dropped kerb access from the highway. 

5.10. Once constructed, the proposed electricity substation and access road would be 
used for maintenance access by authorised personnel only.  The substation is 
unmanned during operation, albeit secure with security perimeter fencing and gates.  
Typically, one maintenance van is expected to visit the site per month, therefore, 
operation traffic movements would be very low, and this would remain the case for 
the lifetime of the substation. 

24



 

 

5.11. The existing visibility splay from the substation access to the A379 would be 
maintained.  The proposed visibility splay for the substation is acceptable to the 
Highway Authority. 

5.12. The Highway Authority is in general agreement with the contents of the Outline 
Construction Management Scheme. 

5.13. A licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried 
out on land forming part of the highway. 

5.14. Environment Agency 

5.15. No objections to the proposals as submitted. 

5.16. DCC Flood Risk Team – Lead local Flood Authority (LLFA) 

5.17. The applicant has proposed to manage surface water from the substation 
development within an underground attenuation tank and oil interceptor.  The outfall 
from the site appears to be along the highway and into the Matford Brook within land 
owned by Devon County Council. 

5.18. No in-principle objections from a surface water drainage perspective assuming a 
pre-commencement planning condition is imposed for the following details to be 
approved before development commences: detailed drainage design based upon 
the Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy; detailed proposals for the 
management of surface water and silt runoff during construction phase; proposals 
for the adoption and maintenance of the permanent surface water drainage 
systems; and, a plan indicating how exceedance flows will be safely managed.  The 
reason for the condition is to ensure that the proposed surface water drainage 
system will operate effectively and will not cause an increase in flood risk either on 
the site, adjacent land or downstream in line with SuDS for Devon Guidance (2017) 
and national policies, including NPPF and PPG. The condition should be pre-
commencement since it is essential that the proposed surface water drainage 
system is shown to be feasible before works begin to avoid redesign / unnecessary 
delays during construction when the site layout is fixed. 

5.19. DCC Archaeology 

5.20. The submitted Written Scheme of Investigation (WSI) sets out the scope of the 
archaeological work to be undertaken in mitigation for the impact of the proposed 
development upon the archaeological resource.  The submitted WSI is acceptable 
to the Historic Environment Team.  I would therefore advise that any consent should 
be conditional upon the development to proceed in accordance with the WSI and 
that the development shall not be brought into its intended use until the post 
investigation assessment has been completed in accordance with the WSI and that 
provision has been made for the analysis, publication and dissemination of results 
and archive deposition.  This is to ensure, in accordance with paragraph 205 of the 
NPPF (2021) and the supporting text in paragraph 5.17 of TLP policy EN5, that an 
appropriate record is made of archaeological evidence that may be affected by the 
development and to ensure that the information gathered becomes publicly 
accessible. [Case Officer Note: paragraph 205 of the NPPF 2021 has been replaced 
by paragraph 211 of the NPPF 2023]. 

5.21. DCC Waste Team 

25



 

 

5.22. Paragraph 8 of the National Planning Policy for Waste and Policy W4 of the Devon 
Waste Plan requires major development proposals to be accompanied by a Waste 
Audit Statement.  This ensure that waste generated by the development during both 
its construction and operational phases is managed in accordance with the waste 
hierarchy, with clear focus on waste prevention in the first instance.  Within the 
waste audit statement, the applicant has addressed the type and amount of waste 
likely to be produced during construction phase.  It is noted that the cut and fill 
method will be used.  It is noted that the details of the waste contractor and disposal 
location are to be confirmed.  Given that this is currently unknown it is recommended 
that the waste audit statement is updated to include principles to ensure that the 
disposal location is in close proximity to the development site and minimise the 
distance for waste to travel.   

5.23. Health and Safety Executive (HSE) 

5.24. The proposed development is within the Consultation Distance of a major hazard 
pipeline. 

5.25. HSE does not advise against, consequently HSE does not advise, on safety 
grounds, against the granting of planning permission in this case. 

5.26. TDC Environmental Health 

5.27. Air Quality: No observations. 

5.28. Environmental Protection: During the construction phases regular noise and 
vibration impact assessments should be scheduled to ensure that the predicted 
levels are not being exceeded and causing issues with the nearest noise sensitive 
receptors and existing residential properties, this will also include the movement of 
plant as well as construction methods.  The schedule of these on-going 
assessments will need to be made available to the LPA and also Environmental 
Health should any nuisance be identified.  The approved Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) may be reviewed and updated subject to 
approval by the LPA and the document should include and not be limited to: 

▪ The identification of particularly intrusive construction practices, i.e. piling and the 
subsequent control measures that will be implemented. 

▪ The arrangements to be implemented for effective communication with the local 
community regarding forthcoming, potentially intrusive, works. 

▪ The methodology to be followed in respect to the proposed noise and vibration 
monitoring regime. 

▪ The document should identify the monitoring locations, the frequency of 
monitoring, the recording requirements, relevant trigger levels and the remedial 
action that would be taken should the trigger levels be exceeded. 

▪ The applicant should include a scheme of works for the control of fugitive dust 
coming from the site. 

▪ The document should make particular reference to any works that are to be 
carried out in areas closest to the identified noise sensitive receptors. 

26



 

 

▪ The plant techniques employed on the site should be reviewed to ensure they are 
the least intrusive available for the purpose. 

5.29. The standard operating hours (including deliveries) will be 08:00 - 1800hrs. Monday 
– Friday, 8:00 – 13:00 on Saturdays and no working on Sundays or Bank holidays. 
No works shall be carried out outside of these times unless approved by the LPA. If 
work or generators are required to operate outside of the abovementioned hours, 
the site boundary sound level should be below the background sound level at the 

nearest noise sensitive dwelling at that time. Boundary and on-site noise levels 
should be monitored regularly. 

5.30. TDC Biodiversity Officer 

5.31. The site is within 1km of the Exe Estuary SPA/Ramsar site.  I have undertaken a 
Habitat Regulations screening which found No Likely Significant Effect on the Exe 
Estuary.  A full Appropriate Assessment is therefore not required. 

5.32. A range of protected and priority species were recorded on and around the site, 
including bats, dormice, nesting birds, reptiles and, on the Matford Brook (into which 
surface water will discharge) otter, eel, brown trout and aquatic invertebrates.  The 
various ecology, landscaping and lighting documents recommend a suite of 
avoidance, mitigation, compensation and enhancement (net gain) measures.  
Taken together, these are acceptable and should be secured.  Of Natural England’s 
‘Three Tests’ it is considered that Test 3 (Favourable Conservation Status) is met.  
It is considered that NE is likely to issue a European Protected Species licence 
where needed for these species. 

5.33. Flood lights are proposed for the site, but the Lighting Statement states that ‘all site 
lighting will remain off during the hours of darkness and will be utilised during the 
event of an emergency only.’  Additionally, light modelling indicates that light levels 
fall to 0.5lux within the site boundary and will be approx. 0lux at the proposed bat 
house. 

5.34. Lesser Periwinkle (Vinca minor) should be removed from Native Scrub Mix A, as it 
is an invasive non-native species.  The proposed retention of most existing 
trees/hedges/scrub, proposed bat house, proposed soft landscaping and ongoing 
habitat management are welcome and should be secured. 

5.35. The Ecological Impact Assessment says that the full detail of wildlife avoidance and 
mitigation measures will be included in the Construction Management Plan; please 
condition this. 

5.36. To avoid harm to legally protected and other species please require compliance with 
the avoidance, mitigation, compensation and measures in the Preliminary 
Ecological Appraisal, Landscape and Ecological Management Plan, Biodiversity Net 
Gain Report, Ecological Impact Assessment and Lighting Statement and condition 
the requirement for the Construction Management Plan to be submitted and 
approved prior to commencement.  Also condition restrictions on lighting during 
construction works to permit continued use of the site by light-adverse bats, dormice 
and other wildlife. 

6. REPRESENTATIONS 

27



 

 

6.1. 29 contributors have submitted representations in objection and comment raising the 
following summarised concerns/points (see case file for full representations): 

1. The application site has been allocated since 2012 as an area for housing with a 
small area for retail.  Loss of housing land. 

2. Impact on existing businesses at Matford Home Farm. 

3. Proposed location conflicts with Exminster Neighbourhood Plan and the 
Teignbridge Local Plan. 

4. The substation would be unsightly and a blot on the landscape. 

5. Would be highly visible within the landscape from A379, the neighbouring existing 
and approved housing. 

6. Would be unsightly development at the forefront of the South West Exeter 
development framework area. 

7. As the owner of the house which would be demolished if planning is successful, 
I object to the proposal.   

8. Too close to the homes at Matford Mews. 

9. Impact on the amenity of new residents at Medland Way and Farmer Place to the 
east. 

10. Should be located away from housing within an industrial area such as Marsh 
Barton and not a residential area. 

11. Alternative sites exist and the applicant conceded within their 4 August 2023 
response that the selection of Matford Home Farm is completely based on being 
the cheapest site to develop. 

12. Following the November 2023 Technical Note the design and layout of the 
proposed electricity substation continually fail to recognise the enormous impact 
that this massive industrial construction will have on the residents of existing 
properties adjacent to the site. 

13. The applicant acknowledges that rotating the substation or relocating elements 
may address concerns relating to visual impacts from Matford Mews but would 
introduce visual impacts from the Cavanna housing scheme.  We would urge that 
priority is given to the wellbeing of residents in existing properties.  How can the 
applicant possibly demonstrate more concern and priority for properties that have 
not yet been constructed, above those residents that have been living for the past 
25 years next to the proposed site. 

14. The applicant has dismissed proposals suggested by the LPA for additional 
landscaping space stating that little benefit will be gained from implementing 
them.  However, as a resident of Matford Mews, any improvement whatsoever 
that reduces the impact on our properties must be considered worthwhile. 

15. The Visual Impact Report compares the effect of the substation with existing 
structures.  It does not consider the loss of amenity to Matford Mews. 

28



 

 

16. Residents of Matford Mews have been waiting for the replacement of the existing 
structures at Matford Home Farm by well-designed houses as approved in the 
outline planning permission for the site.   

17. Noise disruption. 

18. The residents of Matford Mews should not be forced to live so close to a 
potentially noisy health hazard when there are far more suitable sites close by.  
The other sites may possibly be slightly more expensive to develop, but for the 
wellbeing of all those nearby I would request that the applicant reassesses the 
Marsh Barton site or possible site at Peamore. 

19. Concern with the applicant’s statements on noise issues: ‘are likely to be below’ 
and ‘is unlikely to have significant impact’.  This offers zero confidence in the 
analysis undertaken and submitted within the planning application.  We would 
request that the applicant make definitive statements against which levels can be 
measures.   

20. The statement regarding a 25m minimum offset from properties Nos. 6-8 excludes 
my property at 9 Matford Mews.  My property would be most affected by this 
proposed industrial structure and it will be the closest to the 132kv transformers 
and will have uninterrupted views of the site to the east and south.  The applicant’s 
proposed ‘Option D – revised landscaping to include woodland along the western 
boundary and walling to the north of the substation enclosure fails to include my 
property.  This subsequently results in me retaining a full view of the majority of 
this industrial site.   

21. The applicant claims that the noise impact can be effectively mitigated beyond 
the substation site, see Noise Impact Assessment para 7.1.5; this is a subjective 
assumption.  Noise levels have not been measured in crucial locations within the 
neighbouring properties, particularly at first floor levels, in gardens and the 
Matford Mews recreation area.  Also, it is stated that noise created by the plant 
cannot be given as the plant to be used is currently unspecified. 

22. The cross-sectional view from G1 to G is totally meaningless as the skylight 
window referenced at point G1 belongs to property No.4 Matford Views which has 
a lower roofline than Nos.6-9. 

23. The site is liable to flooding.  During heavy rainfall in autumn 2023 a considerable 
quantity of water from the area of Matford Home Farm caused flooding of Matford 
Mews parking area. 

24. The site has been chosen solely on being that it is the cheapest to develop.  The 
applicant makes numerous references to amendments being ‘prohibitively 
expensive’ and ‘substantial costs’; for the applicant to claim they cannot consider 
making amendments due to the cost is an insult to concerned citizens given the 
profits of National Grid PLC. 

25. The substation should be located at Peamore rather than next to established and 
currently constructed residential development, which is quite obviously not the 
best location. 

26. There are at least two alternative sites including Peamore, which is approx. 500m 
from the line of the current cables and also Marsh Barton Industrial Estate. 

29



 

 

27. The October 2021 consultation by DCC showed that of the three sites considered, 
a majority of respondents objected to Matford Home Farm as a possible site with 
most public support for Marsh Barton site.  Marsh Barton site is in flood zone 3; 
however, the comments of DCC Flood Risk Team was ‘no objection would be 
raised if the substation can be safely and appropriately designed within Site’.  
Marsh Barton is far better suited for this type of industrial infrastructure than within 
a residential housing estate and the level of the site could very easily be raised 
by the required amount, as all other industrial buildings in that exact vicinity have 
already successfully accomplished. 

28. Marsh Barton Site can be considered as a suitable alternative to Matford Home 
Farm.  The applicant’s documentary references indicated that by raising the 
ground above predicted flood levels and with suitable screening, Marsh Barton 
Site is eminently suitable to accommodate the substation.  Commercial 
enterprises already exist on adjacent land and Exeter City accept the use of this 
land for additional commercial use, all in Flood Zone 3. 

29. Matford Home Farm site would also require extensive groundwork to level the site 
and provide a level platform as set out in the submitted Planning, Design and 
Access Statement.  

30. Current scientific evidence fails to show clear links between electric and magnetic 
fields with human illnesses.  However, many expert public bodies such as the 
WHO continue to undertake research investigating links between these fields and 
cancer.  UK government policy does not require any special protection to be 
taken.  It is unacceptable to expose residents close to the substation, with both 
overhead and underground cables, to possible risks.  The submitted ‘Planning, 
Design and Access Statement’ states that the proposed scheme will generate 
electric and magnetic fields (EMFs) and that EMFs have been investigated in 
depth during the past three decades and advice from the UK electricity industry 
suggests that EMFs do not cause disease.  The use of the word ‘suggests’ is not 
reassuring. 

31. Strongly object to the proposals; however, if granted then would request 
conditions are imposed to ensure that all transformers are equipped with acoustic 
enclosures providing a minimum noise reduction of 20dB at 100Hz and additional 
planting of fast-growing large evergreen shrubs or trees on top of the western 
bund adjoining Matford Mews to improve privacy and aid in noise reduction. 
 

32. Impact on house prices [Case Officer note: impacts on house prices does not fall 
within material planning considerations]. 

7. TOWN / PARISH COUNCIL’S COMMENTS 

7.1. Exminster Parish Council requests that this application be determined by TDC 
Planning Committee and objects to the application for the following summarised 
reasons: 

1. It does not meet the requirements of policy EXM02 Open Countryside of 
Exminster Neighbourhood Development Plan and policies S1, S2, S5 and S11 of 
the Teignbridge Local Plan 2013-2033. 

2. Loss of housing land and retail. 

30



 

 

3. Overbearing, adjacent to homes in Matford Lane, the Devon Hotel and Matford 
Mews.  Would stand several metres above the rather beautiful stone buildings at 
Matford Mews.  Totally spoil the attractive newly built Elm Park.  Out of keeping 
with character of the are and is especially unsightly on one of the key arterial 
routes around Exeter from which it will be prominently seen.  Walkers in the new 
Ridgetop Park will also have a clear view of it. 

4. Noise or disturbance resulting from use, including the proposed hours of 
operation. 

5. Polluting noise, light and toxic surface water runoff – any pollutants from the 
substation would be drained into Matford Brook and travel through the waterway 
system in Exminster Marshes and out into the River Exe (contrary to TLP policy 
S11). 

6. Carbon Plan.  There are extraordinarily low carbon emissions expected from this 
substation over its lifetime and this should be clarified. 

7. Capacity of the physical infrastructure such as public drainage. 

8. Possible adverse health side effects on people that will live next to the substation 
with published guidance that reasonably practical efforts should be made to site 
substations distant from homes. 

9. More suitable location.  The decision to site the facility on Matford Home Farm is 
fundamentally flawed and driven more by financial considerations rather than 
selecting the best location.  More suitable location in Marsh Barton.  Alternatively 
Exminster Parish Council would support the siting of the substation at Peamore.  
The emerging TDC Local Plan has allocated 99ha for a mixed use development 
and it would make sense to site the substation at Peamore where early 
identification would mean it can be considered in the master plan at an early stage 
so as to minimise adverse impacts on future residential housing. 

8. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 

The CIL liability for this development is Nil as the CIL rate for this type of development 
is Nil and therefore no CIL is payable. 

9. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

The development has been screened under the EIA Regulations 2017.  It does not 
fall within Schedule 1 Development.  However, as part of the South West of Exeter 
Urban Extension the development proposal would fall within Schedule 2 urban 
development projects (10(b)).  The Council’s Screening Opinion is considered to be 
negative and therefore an Environmental Impact Assessment is not required. 

11 HUMAN RIGHTS ACT  

The development has been assessed against the provisions of the Human Rights 
Act, and in particular Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 of the Act itself. This 
Act gives further effect to the rights included in the European Convention on Human 
Rights. In arriving at this recommendation, due regard has been given to the 
applicant's reasonable development rights and expectations which have been 

31



 

 

balanced and weighed against the wider community interests, as expressed through 
third party interests/the Development Plan and Central Government Guidance. 

Head of Place and Commercial Services 

32



 

TEIGNBRIDGE COUNCIL DISTRICT  
 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

CHAIRMAN:  Cllr Colin Parker 

 

DATE: 20 February 2024 

REPORT OF: Business Manager – Strategic Place 

SUBJECT: Appeal Decisions received during previous calendar month 

 
  

 

 

23/00016/REF STOKEINTEIGNHEAD - Barn At Teignharvey Park 
Teignharvey Road  

 Appeal against the refusal of 22/02359/NPA: Application for Prior 
Approval under Part 3 Class Q (a) and (b) paragraph W of the 
GPDO change of use of an agricultural building a dwelling house 
 

Appeal Dismissed. Delegated Decision 
 

 
 

23/00026/NONDET SHALDON - The Strand Sparrows Nest   
 Appeal against the non-determination of 23/00391/HOU: 

Replacement timber-framed conservatory 
 

Appeal Allowed.  
 

 
 

23/00027/NONDET SHALDON - The Strand Sparrows Nest   
 Appeal against the non-determination of 23/00392/LBC: 

Replacement timber-framed conservatory 
 

Appeal Allowed.  
 

 
 

23/00028/NONDET TEIGNGRACE - Land To The North Of The A382  Blatchford  
 Appeal against the non-determination of 22/01319/FUL: 

Retention of hard standing area, for storage of machinery, fodder 
and agricultural equipment 
 

Appeal Allowed.  
 

 

33

Agenda Item 7



 

23/00029/REF ASHTON - Roosters Caravan Higher Ashton  
 Appeal against the refusal of 21/02598/FUL: Use of land for siting 

of residential mobile home 
 

Appeal Allowed. Delegated Decision 
 

 
 

23/00038/REF IPPLEPEN - Littlemead  Marldon Road  
 Appeal against the refusal of 23/00217/FUL: Retrospective 

change of use of paddock land to domestic curtilage, with 
retention of domestic store, pool and driveway 
 

Appeal Dismissed. Delegated Decision 
 

 
 

23/00053/FAST SHALDON - 21 Dagmar Street Shaldon  
 Appeal against the refusal of 23/01285/HOU: Retention of a first 

floor rear extension 
 

Appeal Allowed. To Committee if recommended for refusal 
 

 
 
 

 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE FULL TEXT OF THESE APPEAL DECISIONS IS 
AVAILABLE ON THE COUNCIL'S WEBSITE 

 

34



 

TEIGNBRIDGE COUNCIL DISTRICT  
 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

CHAIRMAN:  Cllr Colin Parker 

 

DATE: 20 February 2024 

REPORT OF: Business Manager – Strategic Place 

SUBJECT: Major variation applications approved in previous calendar month 

 
 

23/01742/MAJ ASHCOMBE - Sawmills  Ashcombe Estate 

 Variation of condition 2 and 8 on planning permission 
15/02115/MAJ (Installation of ground mounted solar array 
(installation of ground mounted solar array and 
associated infrastructure comprising transformers, 
equipment housing, security fencing, ancillary equipment 
and access tracks, tracks, provision of landscape and 
ecology and works) to extend operating period 

  

 VARY CONDITION APPROVAL 

 

23/01855/MAJ OGWELL - Her Majestys Prison Channings Wood  
Denbury 

 Variation of conditions 2, 13, 14 & 15 on planning 
permission 22/00599/MAJ (demolition of education block, 
storage facility, horticultural buildings and office cabins, 
and erection of two T60 houseblocks, horticultural work 
shed and six polytunnels, one MUGA pitch,  workshop, 
prison store, kitchen, extension to existing office building, 
extension to existing reception, multifaith and education 
buildings, sub station, new internal access road, 
additional car parking, extension of security fence line 
and landscaping) to increase height of T60 houseblocks, 
provide additional parking and amend elevations 

  

 VARY CONDITION APPROVAL 

 
 
 
PLEASE NOTE THAT THE FULL TEXT OF THESE DECISIONS IS AVAILABLE ON 

THE COUNCIL'S WEBSITE 

 
 

35

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6a 23/00936/MAJ Matford Home Farm - Substation
	23.00936.MAJ Matford Home Farm - Substation - FRONT PAGE.pdf (p.1)
	23.00936.MAJ Matford Home Farm - Substation.pdf (p.2-24)

	7 Appeal Decisions - to note appeal decisions made by the Planning Inspectorate.
	8 S73 Major Decisions Summary

